ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
May 17, 2003
11:16 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Donny O son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 251(FIN) am
"An Act relating to exenption of certain foreign pleasure craft
from the nmandatory pilotage requirenent and to civil fines
i nposed on the owner or operator of a pleasure craft of foreign
registry; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED SCS CSHB 251(TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 224

"An Act relating to lowering the legal |evel of intoxication for

operating a notor vehicle, aircraft, or watercraft to .02

percent or the equivalent for persons under 21 years of age;

relating to inplied <consent for purposes of determ ning

consunption of al cohol; and providing for an effective date."
HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HB 251 — No previous action to record.
SB 224 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor HB 251

Rex Shattuck
Staff to Representative Nancy Dahl strom

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- May 17, 2003



Al aska State Capitol
Juneau, AK 99801-1182
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 251

ROBERT W NTER

Sout heast Al aska Pil ots Associ ati on
Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 251

Crystal Mbore

Staff to Senat or John Cowdery

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 224

Trooper Matt Leveque

Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 224

Juani ta Hensl ey

Speci al Assistant to the Comm ssioner
Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 224

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-22, SIDE A

CHAIR JOHN COMNDERY called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 11:16 a.m Present were Senators
Gene Therriault, Thomas Wagoner, and Chair John Cowdery. Senator
Georgi anna Lincoln arrived shortly. The first order of business
was CSHB 251.

HB 251- MARI NE PI LOT FOR FOREI GN PLEASURE CRAFT

CHAIR JOHN COMDERY asked for a notion to adopt the Senate
commttee substitute (CS) as the working docunent.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER nade a notion to adopt SCS CSHB 251 \C

version as the working docunent. The notion carried with no
obj ecti on.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- May 17, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE NANCY DAHLSTROM bill sponsor, described HB 251
as an effort to correct a problem in the nmarine pilotage
requirenents identified in a recent |egislative budget and audit
report. They recommend the Board of Marine Pilots seek statutory
authority to allow the discretion to grant waivers of pilotage
requi renents for large pleasure craft.

She pointed out the letters of support in the packets and opi ned
the legislation would pronote econom c devel opnent in Southeast
Al aska coastal conmuniti es.

She provided the follow ng sectional overview

e Section 1 — Inposes a $10,000 civil fine for violation of
the pilotage | aws.
e Section 2 - Cutlines the fee structure for a waiver

application.

e Section 3 Exenpts foreign flagged pleasure craft of 65 feet
or less frompilotage | aws.
e Section 4 — Adds new subsecti ons:

(b) Qutlines exenptions for foreign flagged pl easure
craft over 65 feet and | ess than 175 feet
exclusive of the waters of the Wangell Narrows
and the water between Chatham Strait and Sitka
via Peril Strait

(c) Adds the use of a licensed Al aska agent for yachts
over 65 feet and less than 125 feet in |ength.

(d) Mandates use of pilots on foreign flagged pleasure
craft of nore than 125 feet and | ess than 175
feet in length at the first pilot station into
the first port of call.

(e) Defines “for hire” and “pleasure craft” according
to the U S. Coast CGuard definitions.

11: 35 a.m

CHAIR COANDERY asked whether she would consider a friendly
anendnent on page 3, line 8 changing “10 working days” to “30
wor ki ng days”.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM agr eed.

CHAI R CONDERY asked for a notion to amend.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER made a notion to anend.

CHAI R CONDERY asked whet her there were any questions.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- May 17, 2003



SENATOR GEORG ANNA LINCOLN pointed out that it would be
necessary to change “10” to “30” on line 9 as well.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked her staff to provide further
expl anati on on subsection (b).

REX SHATTUCK, staff to Representative Dahl strom explained there
are probably two issues that should be addressed. The tine for
scheduling marine pilots mght need advance notice and the tine
to work on the waiver mght need additional tinme. He suggested
addressing the need for nore scheduling tinme by inserting, “The
application for a waiver nmust be submitted to the board at | east
30 days before the vessel enters the state.”

CHAI R CONDERY said that would acconplish what he intended. He
t hen questioned whet her the 10 day approval period was adequate.

MR. SHATTUCK replied the intent is to give 10 days processing
time, but the 10 day period for action would be suspended if
addi tional information were needed fromthe applicant.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if the others would stay at 10. [References
to 10 days on page 3, lines 9 and 11]

MR, SHATTUCK replied the 30 day tinme for scheduling would be a
separate statenment and application processing tine could be
either 10 days or 30 days. Cccupational licensing indicated the
10 day period for application processing was acceptable and the
Marine Pilots Association has indicated that the 30 day notice
woul d be suitable for their scheduling. “So |eaving the existing
10 day period for approval of the waiver appeared to be okay as

far as occupational |icensing goes, whereas 30 days in advance
for the scheduling. 1 wuld submt that 30 days for the
processing of the waiver would be acceptable, |I'm sure, to
occupational licensing too.”

SENATOR LINCOLN noted there is reference to a 10 day limt on
line 11 as well. She then requested a witten copy of the
proposed anendnent.

MR. SHATTUCK said he recently learned that not giving the nmarine
pilots 30 days scheduling notice could be problematic. The
| anguage he suggested cane from a previous version of the
| egi slation and, although he didn't have copies to distribute,
he woul d provide themin short order.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- May 17, 2003



SENATOR LINCOLN said she would appreciate a copy. Assumng the
proposed anendment is inserted, she asked whether he was saying
the three references to 10 days [page 3, lines 8, 9 and 11] had
to be changed or did not have to be changed.

MR. SHATTUCK explained 30 days is critical for marine pilot
schedul i ng and wai ver processing could be either 10 or 30 days.

CHAIR COWNDERY said he wunderstood there to be three separate
i ssues. He asked M. Shattuck to explain.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she sinply wanted clarification of the
nunbers.

MR, SHATTUCK said a way of dealing with the tinme mght be to
have an application requirenment of 30 days prior to the vessel
entering the state to cover marine pilot scheduling. As a
separate issue, it would be appropriate that the tine periods on
lines 8, 9 and 11 be the sane.

SENATOR WAGONER said the dates on lines 8 and 9 are integral and
t herefore nust be the sane.

MR. SHATTUCK said the ten day processing time wuld be
acceptable and so the other two dates would have to be 10 as
well. Thirty days for scheduling purposes would help the marine
pi |l ots.

CHAI R CONDERY asked whet her the anmendnent for 30 days on line 8
and leaving 10 days on line 9 was acceptable and a reasonabl e
tinme.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM sai d that was correct.

SENATOR WAGONER said he nust not understand what he was reading
because the 10 working days referred to on line 8 was the sane
10 working days referred to on line 9. Changing one would
automatically require a change of the other

CHAI R CONDERY asked Senator Lincoln if she wanted to add to that
statenent or wait for a response fromthe sponsor

SENATOR LI NCOLN said the amendnent would add a separate section
to acconmpdate the marine pilots 30 day scheduling requirenent.
She nmade it clear she was not nmaking a notion before she read
the |l anguage M. Shattuck proposed. It said, “An application for
the exenption shall be submtted to the marine pilot coordinator

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- May 17, 2003



at least 30 days before the vessel enters the conpulsory
pilotage water of the state.” She continued to explain; after
that |anguage is inserted, the three references to 10 days on
page 3 lines 8, 9 and 11 would remain the sane.

SENATOR WAGONER agreed that made sense; they all have to be the
sane.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER sai d, “They don’'t.”

SENATOR WAGONER di sagreed and restated his position saying,
“This amendnent will nmake a difference, but right now, w thout
t he amendnent, they have to be the sane.”

SENATOR LINCOLN asked the Chair if he was wthdrawng his
not i on.

CHAIR CONDERY said he withdrew his request to anend, which was
to change “10” days to “30” days on page 3, line 8.

SENATOR LI NCOLN nmade a notion to anmend. On page 3, line 7 after
“is issued.” insert, “An application for the exenption shall be
submtted to the marine pilot coordinator at |east 30 days

before the vessel enters the conpulsory pilotage water of the
state.”

CHAI R CONDERY said, “That would go down, starting on line 7 at
‘The board’ ending on line 12 at ‘applicant.” W’d replace that
with the | anguage you’ re tal ki ng about.”

SENATOR LINCOLN clarified she was proposing to insert the
| anguage after the word “issued.” and it’s a new sentence. It
woul d repl ace not hi ng.

MR. SHATTUCK read (b) with the inserted | anguage to clarify.

CHAI R CONDERY asked if the | anguage was satisfactory and whet her
everyone under st ood.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM agreed to the anendnent.
SENATOR LI NCOLN asked for an at-ease.
11: 37 a. m

CHAI R CONDERY cal | ed an at - ease.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- May 17, 2003



11: 43 a. m

CHAI R CONDERY reconvened the neeting.

There was no objection to amendnent #1 and the notion passed.
CHAI R CONDERY asked if anyone wanted to testify on the bill

ROBERT WNTER from the Southeast Alaska Pilots Association
testified in support of the current conmttee substitute for HB
251, but advised that sone nenbers had reservations about the
175 foot exenption limt. He explained the focus is to ensure
safety on the wat erways.

CHAI R CONDERY asked for confirmation that the bill addresses
foreign flagged vessels only.

MR W NTER confi r ned.

CHAIR CONDERY asked how many pilots would be required for a
vessel that stays in Al aska waters for a week.

MR. WNTER replied just one pilot is typically sent to a yacht
because nost yachts don’t run for nore than eight hours at a
time. He pointed out that cruise ships have two pilots on board
if they run nore than eight hours so different schedules are
acconmodat ed.

CHAI R CONDERY asked how Al aska waters is defi ned.

MR. W NTER explained that for pilotage purposes, Al aska waters
are | ocated inside the headl ands.

CHAI R CONDERY asked who transports the pilots.

MR WNTER said in Southeast a pilot boat typically takes a
pilot to a vyacht, but a charter floatplane mght sonetines
provi de transportation.

CHAI R CONDERY asked who pays for the transportation

MR. WNTER replied the owner of the yacht pays, which is the
sane as for cargo and ore ships that require pilots.

SENATOR WAGONER asked about boats for hire.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- May 17, 2003



MR. WNTER explained the intent of this bill is to address
pl easure craft and not vessels that carry passengers or freight
for hire.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked M. Wnter to be nore specific about any
safety concerns pilots nmay have as related to this |egislation.

MR. WNTER said present statute allows vessels up to 300 gross
ton, which would be about 125 feet in length. Vessels that are
175 feet long may range from 600 gross tons up to 1,500 gross
tons, which is a small ship. In the past these vessels have been
entering Alaska waters wthout a pilot and the state hasn't
enforced the pilot requirenent. He continued, “Under the present
statute, we would be exenpting sonme of those, but there is a
requirenent for themto take a pilot on initial entry where the
pil ot would provide themw th navigational safety information.”
This information would include fishing openings, cruise ship
schedul es and ot her perti nent i nformation t hey aren’ t
necessarily getting so this bill mght increase safety.

SENATOR WAGONER brought up the issue of honeland security and
asked if there was any concern associated with foreign flag
vessel s.

MR. WNTER said that is a federal or Coast Guard concern and
this bill isn't a big issue to them They are already tracking
vessel s of special interest.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the fiscal note from occupati onal
| i censi ng showi ng revenues of $102,000 and asked how much of the
new revenue would cone fromcivil fines and who woul d inpose the
fine.

MR. WNTER said the way the |law stands currently, those fines
are crimnal in nature and substantial at $15,000 for the first
infraction. Changing the infraction to be civil in nature would
make it possible for the board to deal with the fines. Al so

length is a nore definitive factor than gross tonnage for
identifying the vessels that would require a pilot. Because
foreign yachts are required to give 96 hours notice before
entering U S. waters, the Coast Guard or U S. Custons data could
provide a ready cross check for which vessels would require a
pilot.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how much of the $102,000 in new revenue
m ght come fromcivil fines.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- May 17, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said they identified about 25 vessels
in the 65 foot to 175 foot range that will probably visit the
state and used that information to conme up with the anticipated
fees. She opined that the revenue generated would be greater
t han proj ect ed.

MR. WNTER said he understood the revenue would cone from the
projected waiver fees. If the system works there wouldn’'t be any
fines.

CHAI R CONDERY asked for the will of the committee.

SENATOR WAGONER asked that the record reflect that the conmttee
substitute \C version was adopted as the working docunent. The
first notion to anend the commttee substitute was w thdrawn and
Senat or Lincoln s amendnent #1 was inserted into (b) on page 3;
it did not renmove or substitute |anguage in (b).

SENATOR WAGONER nmade a notion to nove SCS CSHB 251(TRA) from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fi scal
notes. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

SB 224- LOAER DWW FOR M NCRS TO . 02

CRYSTAL MOORE, staff to sponsor John Cowdery, explained SB 224
would |ower the level of intoxication for operation of a notor
vehicle, aircraft or watercraft to .02 percent for persons |ess
than 21 years of age. Current Alaska law sets the I[imt at .08
and the sponsor believes that is too high for those who are not
ol d enough to drink legally.

CHAIR JOHN COANDERY added there have been a nunber of tragic
accidents associated with alcohol and teens and because a
driver’s license is very precious to a young driver, this may be
hel pful .

TROOPER MATT LEVEQUE from the Departnent of Public Safety
testified via teleconference to support SB 224 and advised the
departnment had not devel oped a fiscal note.

CHAI R CONDERY said there would be associated costs. “Justice is
al ways expensive.”

JAUNI TA HENSLEY with the Departnent of Public Safety said the

bill would have a fiscal inpact on the state, but they were
still in the process of evaluating all the costs. The Al aska

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- May 17, 2003



State Troopers, |law enforcenment, the court system Departnent of
Corrections, and juvenile justice would be inpacted.

CHAI R CONDERY said he realized the bill wouldn’t nmake it through
the systemthis year.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER asked if states with this type of [|aw
found such legislation to be a deterrent.

M5. MOORE reported that Maryl and has seen an 11 percent decrease
in mnors drinking and driving since they passed the zero
tolerance law and 12 other states have seen a 16 percent
decrease in single car accidents.

SENATOR GECRA ANNA LI NCOLN stated she had a nunmber of questions
and asked if he intended to hold the bill in commttee or nove
it that day.

CHAIR COADERY replied it was up to the commttee, but it's an
“up front” bill and it would be heard in the State Affairs
Comm ttee next.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she didn't serve on that commttee and
woul d therefore proceed as though this was her |ast opportunity
to ask questions.

She asked Trooper Leveque if he had Alaska statistics regarding
the nunber of minors that have had nmgjor accidents as a result
of a .02 level of intoxication.

TROOPER LEVEQUE said they didn't have those statistics at this
tinme.

CHAI R CONDERY announced he would hold the bill in commttee for
the rest of the session.

SENATOR LI NCOLN expressed appreciation and asked to hear actua
nunbers rather than percentages when the bill was heard next.

M5. HENSLEY said they would be working to fornul ate the nunbers.
CHAI R CONDERY held SB 224 in conmittee.

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Cowdery adjourned the neeting at 12: 07 pm

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- May 17, 2003



